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Addendum 2 - Clarifications

RFI for Library Services Platforms  

for DALNET 
Dated January 15, 2015
Since the time of the release of the Request for Information (RFI) for Library Services Platforms purchase for the DALNET consortium, questions regarding the specifications have been submitted.  Those questions and the University response appear below.

Question:
This section instructs vendors to provide the information requested in the bulleted items (software product name(s), overview of functionality, subscription costs, professional services/implementation fees, references) to satisfy the RFI. Where in our response should we address this information (except obviously for the 2 pricing-related items, which we’ll cover in Schedule A)? Or should we return the entire RFI document and merely address the bullets on the page where they appear?

Answer:

You are certainly welcome to return the entire RFI document and merely address the bullets on the page where they appear.  Or you can add an Exhibit and put this information on a one or two page form. 

Question:

The “Client References” bullet notes vendors are to provide references “upon request.”  However, would you like us to provide them in our response?  

Answer: 
No, upon request is the preferred method. 

Question: 

How many instances of the current ILS or ILS databases are you running?

Answer: 

The DALNET shared ILS is running one production database and one test database.  WSU and DPL run their own systems separately.

Question: 

How many unique shelving location codes does Detroit Public Library have in their current ILS?

Answer: 

798 shelving locations.

Question: 

Is the University of  Detroit- Mercy School of Law included in the Libraries of University of Detroit Mercy?

Answer: 

Not currently
Question:

Would each library need to have their own instance of Intota?  With customization?
Answer:

If instances are viewed as accounts, the consortium would like one contract with sub-accounts for each library, with customization.  If serials A – Z list functionality is taken as an example, under a DALNET contract, each library would have their own A – Z list reflecting their separate holdings; it would be ideal to also have an overarching A - Z list for the entire consortium, or the ability to expand a local instance to show consortium-wide holdings.

Ideally a new system will offer a cloud-based platform that all users can access online, with one instance for all users, and the platform would allow each library using the system to customize their settings.  Regardless of system design, DALNET expects each library in the consortium to have their own customized policies, coding, and system settings within the new system, as well as separate public interfaces.  As a consortium, a new system would also ideally allow for additional configurations for making other connections among consortium members, such as consortium office admin access for all member profiles in addition to local access for settings, and options for searching at the local and consortium levels.

Question:

Does each library have its own cataloging database?  Or do they need their own database?
Answer:

Currently all members share one cataloging database, with the exceptions of Detroit Public Library and Wayne State University, which run their own separate systems.  Ideally a new system would provide a platform to share cataloging with all DALNET members and any other institution on the platform that is willing to share their records. .  All members currently maintain OCLC subscriptions for WorldCat and intend to keep their holdings updated in WorldCat in the future.  A means for updating holdings automatically or via scheduled process is preferred.

Question:

Do you have a central unit/office or governance structure that provides services to all member libraries? 

Answer: 

Yes.  Although WSU is the fiscal agent of DALNET, the consortium is incorporated in the state of Michigan and has a Board of Directors that is comprised of one representative from each member institution.  The consortium maintains offices at WSU, and currently employs 4 FTE, with additional work completed by the Treasurer of the Board, an employee of WSU.  The consortium offices currently maintain the shared integrated library system used by the consortium, and provides related services for the system, such as system configuration, training, and reporting, among other things.

Question:

Do members today share the same configuration definitions? 

Answer: 

No, members do not currently share configuration definitions in the system, nor do they wish to in the new system.  Although the consortium has policies for coding within the system, each library has their own codes, circulation policies, and other settings within the system.  The only configuration definitions currently shared are any that the current system requires one setting for all, such as the running of nightly processes.

Question:

Are all members of your organization within the same time zone? 

Answer:

Yes, currently all members are in the Eastern Time Zone, and membership is geographically located only in the Southeast Michigan region.

Question:

Do you planning to create a shared catalog (a shared Metadata Management System where institutions contribute and make use of a single and shared catalog for internal use)? 

Answer: 

Yes, we are currently in a shared catalog (except for DPL and WSU) and envision moving to a platform system that allows for shared records among the consortium and other libraries that may be using the platform.  That said, the staff side of the system should allow for limiting to, or scoping to, the local library holdings level.  The public side should allow for separately branded and configured catalogs for each separate institution, as well as have the ability for users to broaden their search from the local level to the consortium level.

Question:

Are you intending to start sharing bibliographic records for cataloging purposes as part of Alma?  

Answer: 

Yes, as is done now in the shared DALNET system, it is intended that members will share bibliographic records in the new system.  The system should allow for shared bibliographic records, with means for identifying locally relevant library specific information (on a holdings/item record if not on the bib record) such as URL links, local notes, etc.  Or such information may be stored on the shared bib if specified bib fields can be “owned” or secured.

Question:

Please describe any central or shared acquisitions activities within your institution/consortium. 

Answer: 

The consortium offers no central or shared acquisitions activities for its members other than system reporting and configuration.  Some members provide central acquisitions activities for their branches (locations).  For instance an academic institution may provide central acquisitions work for its five campus libraries, including budgeting, ordering, approving, receiving, and processing for access.

Question:

Do you have a central unit that manages these acquisitions operations for members? Please include information around central negotiation, central activation of e-resources, and central purchasing. 

Answer: 

Same as noted above; the DALNET offices do not manage acquisitions operations for members but some institutions within the consortium do handle centralized operations for all of their system locations.  The DALNET offices currently do handle batch loading of MARC records for members and would like the flexibility to load records in a new system for members that still desire the consortium to handle this portion of library work flows.  Members that currently manage e-resources other than the loading of MARC records do so on their own, via third-party subscriptions.  The DALNET office has assisted members with establishing automated connections to external systems for updating some third-party systems.  Ideally, in a new system, the DALNET offices would be able to assist members with activation, reporting, and other work flows for e-resources that are currently managed externally in system not under the purview of the consortium.  

Question:

Do you have a central receiving department? 

Answer:

The consortium does not have a central receiving department.  Many member institutions do have central receiving departments for their multiple branches/locations/campuses.

Question:

Do members of your organization share the same vendor file (manage administration of vendor details centrally)? 

Answer: 

Although all information is in a shared database (shared file), members of the consortium’s current shared system do not share a vendor records nor do they have access to each other’s records.  It is desired that a new system would have a Knowledge Base that included vendor information, to which secured local data could be added for each individual institution/library/location as needed, and only accessible to the owning institution.

Question:

Do members of your organization share same funds file (manage administration of funds details centrally)?

Answer: 

Absolutely not; members do not have access to each other’s financial information nor is it desired.  Only the consortium offices may be granted access to such data, potentially only if allowed by the member institution through the system securities.  Currently, the consortium offices do have access to accessing data from the shared database via SQL, externally from the shared system.

Question:

Do members of your organization share the same licenses file? 

Answer: 

Members of the consortium do not currently share a licenses file and many members do not currently have any Electronic Resource Management (ERM) system.  It is desired that a new system would have an ERM with a Knowledge Base that included default licensing information for vendors, to which secured local data could be added for each individual institution/library/location as needed, and only accessible to the owning institution.

Question:

Do members of your organization share a single financial system (ERP)? If there are multiple systems, provide details.

Answer: 

Each member of the DALNET consortium has a separate ERP at their parent intuition and the consortium offices do not track which ERP each of the institutions currently uses.  Responses to the RFI may indicate which ERP systems vendors have successfully integrated/dealt with in the past.

Question:

Do members of your organization share the same users file (manage administration of user details centrally)?

Answer: 

Members of the consortium do not share user accounts (for staff or patron access) but they are all stored in one file (table) in the shared database.  The consortium office handles batch loading for patron records in the current system.  DPL and WSU currently maintain their own separate systems.

Question:

Do members of your organization use a separate authentication system?

Answer: 

Members of the consortium each currently maintain their own separate LDAP or EZProxy authentication systems for allowing users access to licensed electronic resources.  Users of the DALNET shared integrated library system are authenticated for the catalog with information from their patron record in the shared system.  Staff authentication for the integrated library system is handled by the system.

Question:

Do members of your organization use a separate student information system? Please provide details.

Answer: 

Each member of the DALNET consortium has a separate student information system at their parent institution and the consortium offices do not track which system each of the institutions currently uses.  Responses to the RFI may indicate which student information systems vendors have successfully integrated/dealt with in the past.

Question:

Can patrons loan resources from any member (walk in and loan resources from another member)? 

Answer: 

Some members of the consortium have reciprocal borrowing agreements for walk in loan services.  The system should have the ability to create rules that allow or disallow for such access based on locations, patron types, and other relevant circulation policies.  Not all member libraries choose to participate in walk in or other reciprocal borrowing services as many member libraries do not circulate materials outside of their institutions.  Most participants in the DALNET agreements are academic libraries.

Question:

Can patrons access e-resources licensed by any member?

Answer: 

Not currently, as there are currently no jointly licensed e-recourses.  Some joint licensing is anticipated in the future, in addition to separate licenses.  A future system should be able to handle access to an overlap of separate and shared licensed e-resources.

Question:

Are you currently using a single database with SirsiDynix?

Answer: 

The DALNET shared Horizon system currently uses a single database. DPL and WSU have their own systems.
As a reminder, email your responses to Valerie Kreher, Email:  ab4889@wayne.edu (copy to Robin Watkins, at ag5343@wayne.edu).  Remember,  your bids must be in the format provided and be received in the Purchasing Department by February 9, 2015 by 4:00 p.m
All questions concerning this project must be emailed to:, Purchasing Department at Valerie Kreher ab4889@wayne.edu and copy to Robin Watkins at ag5343@wayne.edu by 12:00 p.m., January 26, 2015.  

Do not contact DALNET or the University Library System, other University Units, or DALNET Member Institutions and Libraries directly as this may result in disqualification of your quotation.
Thank you
Valerie Kreher, 

Senior Buyer
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